Esso

8-931

Statement of Significance

The Esso 0il Refinery, located on Boston Street in East Balti-
more, was once one of the largest oil refineries in the world and the
site of several of the earliest refineries in the o0il industry. The
250 acre plant, rebuilt in 1895 and enlarged in 1943 to include gaso-
line production, was rapédly outdated shortly after World War II when
the 0il refining business changed significantly. Presently, the site
operates only as a storage facility but represents an important aspect

of the history of Baltimore's 0il industry.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Almost nothing remains of the nineteenth century origins
of the Esso Refinery, one of the oldest petroleum refinery sites
on the east coast. Two stone masonry tank foundations, probably
late nineteenth century, remain just north of Cardiff Avenue
(formerly 2nd Avenue), but this site was not owned by the oil
company until the 1890's. Foundations also remain from what was
probably part of the '"pipe stills'. These concrete pylons
supported tank receivers for the various products of fractional
distillation. The large smokestack probably dates to the late

1920"'s.

The site is now the major distribution center for Exxon in
the Mid-Atlantic states. Consequently, the majority of the old
refinery site is now occupied by truck loading facilities. The
storage areas to the east and to the north have been expanded

tremendously during the last twenty years.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

—— e o

g



B} SIGNIFICANCE 3-9%7

“€RIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
“ULVREMISTORIC _ARCHEOLUGY-PREMISTORIC  __ COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION __LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
__1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING __MUSIC __THEATER
—_1800-1899 __COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _ PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
v 1900 __COMMUNICATIONS v INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Esso 0il Refinery, located on Boston Street in east
Baltimore, was once one of the largest oil refineries in the world
and the site of several of the earliest refineries in the o0il indus-
try. The 250 acre plant, rebuilt in 1895 and enlarged in 1943
to include gasoline production, was rapidly outdated shortly after
World War II when the oil refining business changed significantly.
Presently, the site operates only as a storage facility but repre-
sents an important aspect of the history of Baltimore's oil industry.

- . . —
Historical Significance

0il refining began in the city of Baltimore in 1868, just
nine years after the world's first oil well was drilled by Colonel
E. L. Drake in Titusville, Pennsylvania. In that year a local merchant
house--Poultney and Moale--started a small refinery at Locust Point.
The Baltimore and Ohio Railroad provided a direct link to the new
oilfields near Parkersburg, West Virginia and this refinery was lo-
cated at the railroad's eastern terminus. Shortly after, several
other refineries began in the city, most located in Canton on the
other side of the harbor. By 1877, there were so many firms opera-
ting small refineries that several neighboring companies joined to
form the Baltimore United 0il Company. These included the Camden
Consolidated 0il Company (later the Esso site), Christopher West and
Sons, Christopher and Company, Jarad Parkhurst Jr. and Company, Charles
H. Nicolai, Merritt Jones and Company, J. H. Nicolai and Brown and
Hammill.

From 1877 to 1892 the Baltimore United 0il Company operated
these small refineries greatly expanding their production. At first,
crude oil was transported to refineries in barrels or tank cars. In
1883, however, the National Transit Company constructed a pipe line
connecting Baltimore refineries directly to wells in the Pennsylvania

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



G-9%7

EIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Query & Vertical Files at Enoch Pratt Central Library, Baltimore, Md.
Baltimore, December 1937 ,
Baltimore, March 1939

oral interview with Mr. Pat O'Connor December 3, 1980
Personnel Officer, Exxon Company, Baltimore, Maryland

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

EIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY o =
[E1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE

Linda Daur , Dennis Zembala

ORGANIZATION e
Baltimore Industrial Museum November 1980
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
217 N. Charles Street 301-396-1931
CITY OR TOWN STATE

Raltimore, Maryland 21201

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PSs- 1108



Esso T
Hist. Sign. (3-8
P 2

B-437

fields. This increased the combined capacity of the refineries from
about 2,500 barrels per day to over 5,000 barrels daily in 1892 when
Standard 0il Company of New Jersey bought the Baltimore United 0il
Company and its components.

Standard 0il Company began operation in 1892 in Baltimore under
the name "Esso Standard 0il Company'--its manufacturing affiliate.
At this time, the refineries were still simple operations employing
between 75 and 80 workers with a daily output of about 5,000 barrels.
In January of 1895, a huge fire destroyed most of the company's buil-
dings, including several adjacent piers and factories. At this time,
the plant was entirely rebuilt and modernized. One important addition
included the construction of two piers to receive crude oil from tankers.
The transport of crude oil by tanker was more economical than by pipe
line: and by 1925 the operation of the line was discontinued.

Throughout the period 1910 to 1940, the Esso Refinery at Boston
Street continually updated its operation. Allied demands during World
War I forced the plant to expand so much that by 1949 the Baltimore Esso
Refinery was one of the largest in the world. Included on the site were
several warehouses and machine shops, a huge pump house to carry water
from the Patapsco used in cooling condenser coils, a fire house, labora-
tory, stills, canning plant, storage tanks and hundreds of miles of pipes.
A railroad spur track on the site allowed direct transfer of gasoline and
heating oil from storage tanks to rail cars. Esso also operated its own
printing plant at Pier two near Pratt Street to provide labels, posters,
stationery and pamphlets for the company's products.

During World War II, the refinery began production of high octane
aviation fuel--which necessitated further expansion. Unlike gasoline
fuel o0il, asphalt or roofing materials which were previously the com-
pany's principal products, aviation fuel requires a fluid or '"cracking"
method of refining rather than a heat/pressure process. High octane
gasoline also requires a number of distilling and blending steps which
involve special equipment. In order to meet the wartime demand for avi-
ation fuel, in 1943 Standard 0Oil built a new 123-a¢re refinery on 1its
South Baltimore site at the cost of 514 million and almost doubled the
size of its property. During its peak the refinery employed almost 5,000
employees and produced almost 400,000 barrels of oil, fuel oil and avia-
tion fuel daily. It was one of the biggest fuel suppliers to the United
States government during World War II.

During the immediate post war years, however, improved refinery
methods, a change in shipping methods and expansion in other areas sharp-
ly curtailed production at the Esso Refinery. The availability of natural
gas in the South, used in the refining process, and large supplies of
crude oil found there, shifted refining to the Gulf States. These new
plants, equipped with more efficient machinery, rapidly surpassed Esso's
older refineries. For example, the Baltimore plant refined only 400,000
barrels daily, while Standard 0il's Texas and Louisiana operations can
produce over 600,000 barrels each.

Improved methods of g §pp1ng allowed refined oil to be easily trans-
ported for the first timearelineries moved from the distribution point to

the drill.
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These changes marked the end of an era in Baltimore's refining
business. In 1956, Standard 0il ceased refining operations at its
Baltimore Esso plant. The site has been converted to a "marketing
terminal" or distribution point for refined oil. Although most of the
buildings have been closed or demolished, the huge metal tanks here are
used for storage of the refined oil until it is shipped either by tank
truck or barge to area homes, businesses and service stations. The
site is presently owned and operated by the Exxon Corporation--which
rededicated the property in 1974--as a storage facility.

While little remains of the original refining plants, this site
retains the function of a major distribution center for the east coast.
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